FEDERAL SECTOR GRIEVANCE ARBITRATION (RIGHTS ARBITRATION)

I.  LEGAL STATUS OF GRIEVANCE ARBITRATION

   
A.
Mandated by statute to be in all collective bargaining       
     agreements.  5 U.S.C. § 7121(a)(1).

   
B.  
Arbitration invoked either by an exclusive

          representative 
or management.  5 U.S.C. § 7121(b)(3)(c).

          Employees may not invoke it.

   
C.  
Binding on both parties.  Id.

D.  
Practically final because of limited grounds for                  reversal. 
(See Exceptions, infra).

     E. 
Few, if any, procedural rules.

II.  NATURE AND SCOPE              

     A.  
Collective bargaining agreement must provide procedures           for settling grievances, including resolving questions             of arbitrability.  5 U.S.C. § 7121(a)(1).

     B.  
A grievance is any complaint:

         
1.  
by an employee concerning any matter relating to         
     the employment of the employee;



2.
by any labor organization concerning any matter            

relating to the employment of any employee;

       
3.  
by any employee, labor organization or agency        


concerning:

             
a.  
the effect, interpretation, claim, or breach     



of a collective bargaining agreement.

            
b.  
any claimed violation of a bargaining 





agreement or misapplication of any law, rule, 



or regulation affecting conditions of 





employment. 5 U.S.C. § 7103(a)(9).

     C.
Arbitrability refers to whether or not the grievant is     
     entitled to grieve and arbitrate the claim under the        

grievance procedure.

        
1.  
Substantive arbitrability:  Either the statute or              
the collective bargaining agreement itself does not             
allow the grievant to resolve the particular issue             
under the grievance procedure.

            
a.
Statutory exclusions:

                
(1)
claimed violations of 5 U.S.C. Chapter





75, (Involves prohibited political 






activities) 5 U.S.C. § 7121(c)(1).





(2) 
retirement, life insurance, or health                    

insurance.  5 U.S.C. § 7121(c)(2).

               

(3)
suspension/removal under 5 U.S.C. § 7532, 




5 U.S.C. § 7121(c)(3). 

           

(4) 
examination, certification, or 






appointment. 5 U.S.C. § 7121(c)(4).





(5)
classification of positions not resulting 




in reduction of grade or pay. 5 U.S.C. § 




7121(c)(5). U.S. Dept.of Health and
Human Services, Denver Colorado, 56 FLRA No. 15 (2000).

(6)
removal of probationary employees.  Dept.of Justice v. FLRA, 709 F.2d 724 (D.C. Cir. 1983). See also NTEU v. Treasury, Financial Management Service, 45 FLRA No. 62 (1992).

              

(7)  issues already raised in a ULP.  5 U.S.C.                     
 
§ 7116(d).


     

     (8)
contractual exclusions:  Any collective                


bargaining agreement may exclude any 





matter from coverage by the grievance 





procedures provided for in the agreement. 




5 U.S.C. § 7121(a)(2).

         
2.  
Procedural arbitrability:  Even if the issue falls             
within the scope of the procedure, the claim may 



not be procedurally arbitrable because of the 



claimant's failure to meet some contractual 




condition precedent 
to arbitration.  These 




conditions may include:




a.  
timely filing of grievance.

            
b.  
exhaustion of the grievance procedure.

           
c. 
timely notice of intent to arbitrate.  See,                

Elkouri and Elkouri, How Arbitration Works, 




5th Ed. 1997, Chapter 5 (hereinafter, Elkouri).

         
3.  Generally accepted principles:


         a. contractual arbitrability defenses should be                       raised as soon as known, or a waiver may be                        inferred.

              b. statutory arbitrability defenses probably 

                  cannot be waived.

              c. arbitrators do not like arbitrability 


                  defenses, since they prevent resolving the 
                       merits of the claim.

III.
PRELUDE TO ARBITRATION

 
A.  
Grievances

     

1.  Contractual process

         
2.  Example of grievance

     B.  
Selecting an Arbitrator

      
1.  Contractual process



2.  FMCS panel

   

3.  Research

a.  FMCS breakdown(NOTE:  FMCS charges a fee for     providing a panel listing of arbitrators.)

              b.  advice from from others (ALC's, Army/Navy bases,                   OPM region, DPW, MAJCOM, DOD's Field Advisory                      Service)

              c.  read published awards


C.  
Preparation

    
 
1.  Check charges in all discipline cases

              a.  Procedurally correct

                  (1)  AFI 36-704

          
        (2)  MAJCOM/local supplements

                  (3)  Contractual procedures

             
b.  
Efficiency of Service


               
(1)  sufficiency of evidence

     

          
(2)  nexus

          

     
(3)  appropriate penalty

         
2.  
Witness Interviews

           
a.   Interview supervisors/military

            
b.   Bargaining unit employees

               

(1)  will be formal discussion under Dept. of 




Air Force, Sacramento ALC, McClellan AFB, 




35 FLRA No. 68 (1990).                 

                 
(2)  but, FLRA requires the interview to be                          
"non‑coercive" and not in violation of                            
5 U.S.C. § 7102 rights.

                    

(a)  advisement required

          

          

1.  purpose

               

          
2.  voluntary

                    

     
3.  no reprisals

                     
(b)  Not "otherwise" coercive.  IRS,                          
     Brookhaven, 9 FLRA No. 132 (1982). 








D.  
Research

          1.  Use technical representative

          2.  Collective bargaining agreement/master labor                       agreement

          3.  Laws, rules, regulations

              a.  AFI 36-xxx

              b. Office of Personnel Management 5 C.F.R. Parts 1                    through 1199

              c. underlying statutes

              d. FLRA decisions 

              e. published arbitration awards 

                  (1)  Federal Labor Relations Reporter

                  (2)  Labor Arbitration Reports (BNA)

                  (3)  Labor Arbitration Awards (CCH)

                  (4)  LAIRS ‑ name, date, LAIRS # (seek from DPCW                        through MAJCOM)

                  (5)  Government Employment Relations Report ‑                           GERR (BNA)

      E.  Submitting issues to arbitrator

          1.  Controls "authority" of arbitrator (See Exceptions,                infra).

          2.  If parties cannot agree, arbitrator decides what                   issues are before him or her.

          3.  Try to frame issues favorably to your client.

          4.  Know grievance history, since it should                            automatically narrow issues.

 IV.  PROCEDURES/BURDENS OF PROOF

      A.  Several sources:  Statute, contract, arbitrator's                  choice.

      B.  Statutory limitations apply only to Chapter 43/Chapter             75 actions which the employee could appeal to MSPB.  For           these actions, the arbitrator shall be governed by                 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(1), which provides:

          1.  Chapter 43 ‑ Substantial evidence.  (5 U.S.C. § 
               7701(c)(1)(A).  Substantial evidence defind in

              Parker v DLA, 1 M.S.P.R. 505, 529 (1980) 

          2.  Chapter 75 ‑ Preponderance of evidence.  (5 U.S.C. §               7701(c)(1)(B).  Preponderance evidence defined                     Natividad v. Dept. of Agriculture, 5 M.S.P.R. 415                  (1981).

          3.  Affirmative defenses ‑ 5 U.S.C. § 7121(e)(2);                      Cornelius v. Nutt, 472 U.S. 648 (1985).



4.  Arbitrator must follow Douglas factors in Chapter 75

       
    action when determining the appropriate penalty.                  Cloutterbuck v. Dept. of Labor, 85 M.S.P.R. 684                   (2000).

      C.  Arbitrator's choice ‑ Absent statutory or contractual              provisions, the arbitrator has the authority to decide.            AAA Rule 26.  Generally accepted rules:

          1.  order of presenting case

              a.  grievant first.  AAA Rule 26; Elkouri, 367

              b.  EXCEPT discipline.  Elkouri, 368

          2.  Burden of Persuasion

              a.  grievant by preponderance of evidence

              b.  EXCEPT discipline ‑ management's burden

                  (1)  normal ‑ preponderance of evidence

                  (2)  serious ‑ long suspension/discharge

                       (a)  argue that it shouldn't be greater                                 than in 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(1).

                       (b)  some arbitrators will apply "beyond a                              reasonable doubt" standard to criminal

                            misconduct, moral turpitude, or any                                "economic capital punishment"                                      (removal).

  V.  RULES OF EVIDENCE.  None (absent contractual controls).

      Noted below are some problem areas:

      A.  
Relevance

          1.  Therapeutic value

          2.  Ill‑defined issues

          3.  Pay varies in direct proportion to length of hearing

          4.  Result ‑ evidence comes in of questionable relevance

     B.   "New" evidence (not disclosed in grievance)

          1.  Could be excluded even without bad faith (minority                 rule)

          2.  Admitted with delay for rebuttal

     C.  
Hearsay

          1.  Admitted "for what it's worth"

          2.  Prove reliability
     D.   Offers of compromise/settlement.  Normally not          


admissible, as admitting them would destroy bilateral           
attempts to resolve problems.  When MSPB rules apply in           chapters 43/75 arbitrations, settlement offers are                 inadmissible on merits of case, Cocchiara v. Dept. of              Transportation, 18 M.S.P.R. 281 (1983).

     E.  
Illegally obtained evidence

     F.  
Collateral estoppel

          1.  Split authority

          2.  Generally expect reliability of witness issues, such               as "I pleaded guilty because the prosecutor offered a               good deal"

 VI. GENERALLY ACCEPTED RULES OF CONTRACTUAL INTERPRETATION

     A. 
Intent of parties is ultimate inquiry

     B.
Clear and unambiguous language controls

     C.  
If ambiguous, here are some considerations:

         
1.  bargaining history

          2.  past practice

          3.  agreement as a whole

          4.  avoid nonsensical results

          5.  expression of one thing is to exclude another

          6.  general words after list of specific terms include                 only things of same class as specifics

          7.  ambiguity construed against party who proposed                     language

VII.  Statutory Powers of an Arbitrator


 A.  Stays

          1.  If an alleged prohibited personnel practice is                     involved, the arbitrator may order a stay of a                     personnel action.  5 U.S.C. 7121(b)(2)(A)(i).


 B.  Disciplinary Action



1.  An arbitrator may order the disciplinary action                   against individual employees who are found to have                 committed prohibited personnel practices.  5 U.S.C. § 

              7121(b)(2)(A)(ii).


 C.  Compensatory Damages 

VIII.  EXCEPTIONS (APPEAL)

       A.  Grounds for exceptions

           1.  Contrary to law, rule, or regulation. 5 U.S.C.                
     § 7122(a)(1); VA Hospital, 4 FLRA No. 57 (1980); 

     

     U.S. Dept of Defense Dependent Schools, 41 FLRA

          
     No. 105 (1991); AFGE Local 3369, 55 FLRA No. 205                  (2000); AFGE Local 1017, 55 FLRA No. 209                           (2000). 




Examples:

             
a.  Back‑pay Act:  5 U.S.C. § 5596 requires "but                      for" determination; cannot be granted as remedy                    just to deter employer.

b.  CFR provisions:  Sick Leave  5 CFR Part 630 provides that an agency may grant sick leave only when supported by evidence administratively acceptable.  If an employee has provided the agency with administratively acceptable evidence of incapacity, an employee’s failure to follow sick leave procedures, standing alone, does not serve as a basis on which to sustain an AWOL charge.  NAGE, Local R1-109 v. Veteran’s Affairs, Newington, 51 FLRA No. 145 (1996).

               c.  X‑118 qualification standards:  Federal                            Correctional Institute, 16 FLRA No. 86 (1984).

  d. Management rights:  5 U.S.C. § 7106(a).  An arbitrator’s award ruled  that management may not assign ordinary work to supervisors when bargaining unit employees are available.  The Authority found the award to be contrary to management’s right to assign work.  AFGE, Local 919 v. Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons, 53 FLRA No. 22 (1997).  The Authority will not find an arbitrator’s award enforcing a contract provision to be contrary to a management right if the contract provision (i) constitutes an arrangement under 5 U.S.C. 7106(b)(3) and (ii) does not abrogate the exercise of a management right.  An award that abrogates a management right precludes an agency from exercising a management right.  See U.S. Customs Service v. NTEU, 37 FLRA No. 20 (1990). 

                   (1) This is the best ground to appeal.  Very few                        successful arbitration appeals on other                            grounds.

          2.  Other grounds similar to those applied by Federal     
         courts in private sector labor‑management relations.       
    5 U.S.C. § 7112(a)(1).

              a.  Arbitrator exceeded his/her authority by                           deciding an issue not before him/her.  McGuire                     AFB, 3 FLRA No. 38 (1980); V.A. Medical Center,                    Newington, 19 FLRA No. 67 (1985).

              b.  Award does not draw its "essence" from the                         collective bargaining agreement.  Overseas, 4                      FLRA No. 17 (1980); DHHS, 10 FLRA No. 73 (1982); 

                  AFGE Local 51, 30 FLRA No. 138 (1988); 

                  AFGE Local 3369, 55 FLRA No. 205 (2000).  

c.  Award is so incomplete, ambiguous or contradictory that it is   impossible to implement. NLRB, 35 FLRA No. 55 (1990); 

    U.S.Dept. of Defense, Dependent Schools, 

    55 FLRA No. 180 (1999).

 d.  Award based on "non‑fact" ‑ a gross mistake of     fact which changed result.  U.S. Army Missile      Material Readiness Command, 2 FLRA No. 60          (1980); Army Missile Command Redstone Arsenal,     18 FLRA No. 50 (1984); Dept. of HUD, 33 FLRA No.    38 1988); International Organization of Masters,

                  39 FLRA No. 59 (1991); Dept. of Justice, 49 FLRA




   No. 8 (1994); U.S. Dept. of Defense, DLA, 55                      FLRA No. 10 (2000).

              e.  Bias or partiality of an arbitrator.  Private                      sector case is Coatings Corp. v. Continental                       Casualty Co., 393 U.S. 145 (1968); NLRB,

                  35 FLRA No. 55 (1990); National Gallery of Art,

                  39 FLRA No. 14 (1991); DLA, 50 FLRA No. 39 



   (1995).    

              f.  Failure to hear pertinent and material evidence.                   National Border Patrol Council, 3 FLRA No. 62                      (1980); DHHS, SSA, 24 FLRA No. 93 (1986); Health                   Care Financing Administration, 26 FLRA No. 101

                  (1987); Dept of Air Force, Hill AFB, 39 FLRA No.

                  7 (1991); AFGE Local 1869, 50 FLRA No. 32 (1995);




   NFFE Local 1437, 55 FLRA No. 190 (1999).



3. Exceptions Filing Rules

     
        a.  Exceptions must be filed within 30 days beginning                  on the date of the arbitration award.  5 U.S.C. §                  7122(b).

             b.  The failure to file an exception within the 30 day                  statutory period is a bar to challenging the award                  in an unfair labor practice proceeding.                            Department of the Air Force v. FLRA, 775 F.2d                      727 (1985).

             c.  All exceptions to arbitration awards to the FLRA                   must be filed by the Central Labor Law Office    


      (CLLO).  

             d.  Arbitration awards involving Chapter 43/75 cases                   must be filed by the Office of Personnel                           Management in the Federal Circuit.  5 U.S.C. §                     7121(f).



B.  Appeal Routes

         1.  MSPB‑type cases (Chapter 43 and 75 only)

             a.  To Court of Appeals for Federal Circuit, 5                         U.S.C. § 7121(f), 7703.

             b.  By OPM (through AFLSA/CLLO)

                 (1)  Error interpreting civil service law, rule                         or regulation.

                 (2)  Having "substantial impact" on civil                               service system.

         2.  Mixed case (MSPB jurisdiction plus allegation of                   discrimination).

             a.  To MSPB, 5 U.S.C. § 7121(d), 7702(a)(1).

                 (1)  MSPB will not provide de novo review, but                          will only ensure that the arbitrator has                           not erred in interpreting civil service                            law, rule, or regulations.  Burden of                              proving error is on employee.  Robinson v.                         DHHS, 30 M.S.P.R. 389 (1986).

                 (2)  Lack of verbatim transcript does not                               entitle employee to hearing at MSPB.                               Denson  v. VA, 30 M.S.P.R. 383 (1986).


           (3)  Labor organizations do not have an                      


 independent right to request MSPB review.                         Also, when issue raised on review is not                           sufficiently addressed in the arbitration                          award, the Board will decide the issue on the                      basis of the record presented with                                 the request for review.  Appling v. SSA,                           30 M.S.P.R. 375 (1986).

            b.   Then to EEOC, 5 U.S.C. § 7702(a)(3), (b)(1).

            c.   Plus Special Panel, 5 U.S.C. § 7702(d)(6).

            d.   Federal District Court.

                 (1)  Judicially reviewable actions.

                      (a)  Grievance decision, 5 U.S.C. 

                           § 7702(a)(2).   

                      (b)  Arbitration decision, 5 U.S.C.                                     § 7121(d), 7702(a)(2).   

                      (c)  MSPB decision, 5 U.S.C. § 7702(a)(3).

                      (d)  EEOC concurrence with MSPB, 5 U.S.C.                               § 7702(b)(5)(A).

                      (e)  MSPB concurrence with EEOC new                                     decision, 5 U.S.C. § 7702(c).

                      (f)  Special Panel decision, 5 U.S.C. 

                           § 7702(d)2).

                 (2)  Other Routes to Court

                      (a)  120 days after grieving with Agency.                               5 U.S.C. § 7702(e)(1)(A).

                      (b)  120 days after filing appeal with 
                            MSPB.  5 U.S.C. § 7702(e)(1)(B).

                      (c)  180 days after filing with EEOC.                                   5 U.S.C. § 7702(e)(1)(C).

         3.  Discrimination without action appealable to MSPB.

             a.  To EEOC, 5 U.S.C. § 7121(d).

             b.  Federal District Court.

                 (1)  Judicially reviewable actions.

                      (a)  Grievance decision, Civil Rights Act 

                           717(c).

                      (b)  Arbitration decision, Id.
                      (c)  EEOC decision, Id.
                 (2)  Other

                      (a)  180 days from grievance, Id.
                      (b)  180 days from filing with EEOC, Id.
         4.  All others

             a.  To FLRA, 5 U.S.C. § 7122.

             b.  No judicial review, unless:

                 (1)  Involves ULP, 5 U.S.C. § 7123(a)(1), or

                 (2)  Agency refuses to implement, FLRA finds                            ULP, Id.
     C.  Reporting requirements

         1.  All cases ‑ 6 copies to CLLO, one copy to MAJCOM                   within 3 workdays.  EXCEPT:  Chapter 43/75 cases                   IMMEDIATELY with copies to JACL (Employment Litigation 

   Branch) and OPM.

         2.  If exceptions proposed:

             a.  Immediate notice to MAJCOM and CLLO.

             b.  Detailed outline of basis for appeal within 7                      days.

             c.  If union appeal, similar notice.

         3.  AFLSA/CLLO responsible for filing exceptions within 30              days of date the award is served on the filing                     party.

IX. COLLATERAL ISSUES

    A.  Official time for grievant and representative is                   negotiable under 5 U.S.C. § 7131(d).  See your contract.

    B.  Transcript

        1.  Mutual agreement of parties controls what is                       "official record."

        2.  If one side unilaterally makes record, transcript                  may not be "official."  AAA Rule 21.

    C.  Attorney's fees

        1.  Backpay Act 5 U.S.C. § 5596.  Backpay must be                      awarded as condition precedent to entitlement.  GSA,               20 FLRA No. 95 (1985).

        2.  Standard same as MSPB, 5 U.S.C. § 7701(g).

            a.  Prevailing party.

            b.  Interests of justice unless discrimination.

            c.  Criteria set forth in Navy, 21 FLRA No. 25                         (1986).

        3.  Arbitrator must fully articulate specific finding                  supporting the determination of each statutory              
       requirement, including the basis upon which the             
       reasonableness of the award was determined.                        Deficient awards will no longer be remanded.  FAA,

            20 FLRA No. 87 (1985).

    D.  Representation:   Employees may not be represented   by   anyone other than the exclusive representative.          They may not be represented by a non-union               representative, such as an attorney, if the non-union    representative is acting only on behalf of the           employee.  Vandenberg AFB, 15 FLRA No. 154 (1984).  See   also VAMC, 25 FLRA No. 66 (1987).


13

14
5

